

# Decoding Stark Law and Anti-Kickback Statute:

A Strategic Guide for Radiology Practices



# **Table of Contents**

Executive Summary1	
Introduction	
Understanding Stark Law	
Marketing Practices in Healthcare	
Common Legal Pitfalls in Radiology Practices	
The Importance of Compliance Programs in Radiology P	ractices9
Understanding Stark Law versus Anti-Kickback Statute	11
The value of Proactive Compliance Audits	
Conclusion and Recommendations	
Glossary of Terms	

# **Executive Summary**

In the intricate world of healthcare law, two towering regulations, Stark Law<sup>1</sup> and the Anti-Kickback Statute<sup>2</sup>, cast a profound influence on the operations of radiology practices. Mastery of these laws demands not only a detailed understanding of their provisions but also a keen awareness of potential pitfalls and a strategic approach to compliance.

This white paper, enriched by the invaluable insights of Adrienne Dresevic, a distinguished healthcare attorney and expert, ventures into the heart of these healthcare laws. It uncovers the realities of Stark Law, demystifies the complexities of the Anti-Kickback Statute, and illuminates the often shadowed aspects of healthcare marketing practices<sup>3</sup>.

Beyond theoretical exploration, the paper provides practical guidance on crafting robust compliance programs<sup>4</sup> and implementing proactive compliance audits<sup>5</sup>, enriched with real-world case studies. It also delves into the practical implications for radiology practices, discussing common legal pitfalls, emphasizing the indispensable role of robust compliance programs, and highlighting the importance of proactive compliance audits in unearthing and addressing potential legal issues.

Through a thorough analysis of these topics, this white paper aims to equip healthcare professionals, marketers, and operators with a deep understanding of these laws and their implications for radiology practices. It serves as a compass, guiding readers through the often stormy seas of healthcare regulations, providing them with the knowledge and tools necessary to navigate with confidence and precision.

<sup>1</sup> Stark Law: A federal law that prohibits physicians from referring Medicare patients for certain designated health services to an entity in which the physician (or a member of his or her family) has an ownership/investment interest or with which he or she has a compensation arrangement.

<sup>2</sup> Anti-Kickback Statute: A federal criminal statute that prohibits the exchange (or offer to exchange), of anything of value, in an effort to induce (or reward) the referral of federal healthcare program business.

<sup>3</sup> Healthcare Marketing Practices: The systematic planning, implementation, and control of a mix of business activities intended to bring together buyers and sellers for the mutually advantageous exchange or transfer of healthcare services.

<sup>4</sup> Compliance Program: A set of internal policies and procedures implemented by a healthcare provider to comply with legal, ethical, and professional standards.

<sup>5</sup> Proactive Compliance Audit: A systematic, independent, and documented process for obtaining evidence and evaluating it objectively to determine the extent to which compliance criteria are fulfilled.



# Introduction

# The Impact of Healthcare Laws on Radiology Practices

Healthcare is a field marked by a labyrinth of regulations, policies, and laws. Among these, Stark Law and the Anti-Kickback Statute are two crucial regulations that significantly shape the operations of various healthcare practices, particularly radiology practices. For instance, Stark Law and Anti-Kickback Statute violations have resulted in healthcare organizations paying billions of dollars in settlements over the past decade. Radiology practices are significantly impacted due to the nature of their operations and relationships with other entities. In navigating these challenges, solutions like AbbaDox's Referral Marketing CRM and Referring Physician Portal can provide radiology practices with efficient and compliant ways to manage referrals<sup>6</sup>.

# The Importance of Understanding Healthcare Laws

These laws not only govern the conduct of these practices but also have considerable implications for their operations, their relationships with other entities, and their overall approach to delivering healthcare services. Understanding these laws, their stipulations, their penalties, and their nuances is of paramount importance for anyone involved in the healthcare industry. It's not just about compliance – it's about ensuring the integrity of healthcare services, preserving the trust of patients, and maintaining the reputation of healthcare practices.



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>6</sup> Referral: The process of directing, or redirecting, of a patient to appropriate healthcare service or professional. The Stark Law has a specific definition of referral, which includes certain exceptions.

# Navigating the Intricacies of Healthcare Laws

In this white paper, we delve into the intricacies of Stark Law and the Anti-Kickback Statute, guided by the insights shared by Adrienne Dresevic, a renowned healthcare attorney and expert in the field. We explore the implications of these laws for radiology practices, examine the intersection of healthcare laws with marketing practices, and discuss the importance of proactive compliance.

# **Glossary of Key Legal Terms**

To make the information more accessible to readers without a background in healthcare law, a glossary of key legal terms is included in the <u>Appendix</u>.

# **Purpose of This White Paper**

This white paper serves as a comprehensive guide to understanding and navigating these complex healthcare laws. It provides valuable insights for healthcare professionals, marketers, and operators in the field, equipping them with the knowledge and tools to navigate the often tumultuous seas of healthcare regulations.





# **Understanding Stark Law**

## Introduction to Stark Law

Stark Law, named after U.S. Congressman Pete Stark, is a federal law that has significant implications for the healthcare industry. This law prohibits physicians from referring Medicare patients for certain designated health services<sup>7</sup> to an entity in which the physician (or a member of his or her family) has an ownership/investment interest or with which he or she has a compensation arrangement<sup>8</sup>.

## **Implications for Radiology Practices**

Stark Law plays a substantial role in the operations of radiology practices. It impacts how these practices form relationships with other entities, how they deliver services, and how they maintain compliance. For instance, marketing professionals in radiology practices need to be aware of the implications of Stark Law when promoting services to physicians.

## **Understanding Stark Law: Beyond the Definition**

Understanding Stark Law is not just about knowing its definition. It is about comprehending its nuances, its applications, and its penalties. As Adrienne Dresevic puts it, "Stark Law is a complex area of the law... it's a strict liability statute<sup>9</sup>. That means intent doesn't matter. If you violate the law, even if it was an accident, you're liable".

<sup>9</sup> Strict Liability Statute: A law where the guilty mind (mens rea) does not have to be proven when a guilty act (actus reus) is committed. Stark Law is an example of a strict liability statute.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>7</sup> Designated Health Services (DHS): Certain services defined in the Stark Law, including, without limitation, radiology and certain other imaging services.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>8</sup> Compensation Arrangement: Any arrangement involving any remuneration, direct or indirect, overt or covert, in cash or in kind, between a physician (or a member of his or her family) and an entity.

• • • • •



# Case Study: Tuomey Healthcare System

To illustrate the implications of Stark Law, consider the case of Tuomey Healthcare System. The healthcare system was alleged to have entered into contracts with various specialist physicians that required the physicians to refer their outpatient procedures to Tuomey. In return, these physicians allegedly received compensation that could be seen as a form of bribe, in violation of Stark Law. Despite warnings from attorneys about the risky physician contracts, Tuomey proceeded with the arrangements and ended up filing over 21,000 false claims with Medicare. The case resulted in a settlement of \$237 million, one of the largest in Stark Law violation history. This case underscores the importance of understanding and adhering to Stark Law, as violations can lead to severe financial penalties and reputational damage.

## **Recent Changes to Stark Law**

Recent changes to Stark Law have introduced new exceptions for value-based arrangements and physician wellness programs, marking a significant shift towards accommodating value-based care models. These changes reflect the evolving landscape of healthcare delivery and have important implications for radiology practices.

By understanding Stark Law and its implications, radiology practices can ensure they maintain compliance, deliver highquality services, and uphold the trust of their patients.



# **Marketing Practices in Healthcare**

### The Role of Marketing in Healthcare

The role of marketing in healthcare is multifaceted. It's not just about promoting services; it's about maintaining relationships, fostering trust, and ensuring transparency. As Adrienne Dresevic states, "Sometimes people don't realize that what they are doing is marketing. They think they are just being friendly or they are just doing their job, but in reality, they are marketing and they need to be aware of the rules". In this context, tools such as AbbaDox's Referral Marketing CRM can help healthcare organizations streamline their marketing efforts while ensuring compliance with healthcare laws.

#### Intersection with Healthcare Laws

Healthcare marketing practices can sometimes intersect with healthcare laws, particularly Stark Law and the Anti-Kickback Statute. For instance, offering incentives or benefits to referring physicians could potentially violate these laws. Therefore, it's essential for marketers in healthcare organizations to be aware of these laws and ensure their marketing practices comply with them.

#### **Potential Violations: A Scenario**

To illustrate, consider a scenario where a radiology practice offers a referring physician a luxury vacation as a "thank you" for their referrals<sup>10</sup>. This could potentially be seen as a violation of the Anti-Kickback Statute, as it could be interpreted as an incentive for referrals. This would also violate the Stark Law.

#### **Best Practices for Healthcare Marketers**

To ensure compliance with healthcare laws, healthcare marketers should:

- Be aware of the stipulations of Stark Law and the Anti-Kickback Statute.
- Avoid offering incentives that could be interpreted as kickbacks.
- Ensure all marketing practices are transparent and ethical.
- Regularly review and update marketing practices to ensure they remain compliant as laws change.

<sup>10</sup> Referral: The process of directing, or redirecting, of a patient to appropriate healthcare service or professional.

# **Common Legal Pitfalls in Radiology Practices**

# **Types of Legal Pitfalls**

Radiology practices operate in a complex and highly regulated environment, making them susceptible to several legal pitfalls. These can range from non-compliance with Stark Law or the Anti-Kickback Statute to issues related to private equity due diligence, whistleblowers in false claims cases, and cost-shifting in exclusive contracts.

# **Implications for Radiology Practices**

As Adrienne Dresevic highlights, "There are a lot of pitfalls, and the biggest thing is just recognizing that there's a potential issue". Awareness of these potential issues is the first step towards preventing them. Understanding the specific legal requirements and regulations that apply to radiology practices is crucial in avoiding these pitfalls.

# A Real-World Example

For example, a common pitfall in radiology practices is the improper structuring of compensation arrangements with referring physicians. This could potentially violate Stark Law, which prohibits physicians from referring patients to entities with which they have a financial relationship. To avoid this pitfall, radiology practices should ensure that any compensation arrangements with referring physicians are structured in a way that complies with Stark Law.

# **Preventing Legal Pitfalls**

However, avoiding these pitfalls is not just about understanding and following the law. It's also about establishing robust internal processes, fostering a culture of compliance, and encouraging open and honest communication within the organization. Regular training on healthcare laws and regulations, as well as ongoing monitoring of compliance, can also play a crucial role in preventing legal pitfalls.

# The Importance of Compliance Programs in Radiology Practices

# Why Compliance Programs Are Important

Ensuring legal compliance is a critical aspect of operating any healthcare practice, including radiology practices. A robust compliance program plays an instrumental role in maintaining this compliance, managing risks, and fostering a culture of integrity within the organization. As Adrienne Dresevic notes, "It's important to have a compliance program that addresses your specific risk areas. You know, every radiology practice is not the same". Indeed, a one-size-fits-all approach does not work when it comes to compliance. Each radiology practice has unique characteristics, operations, and risks, all of which should be taken into account when developing and implementing a compliance program. Moreover, radiology practices can leverage solutions like AbbaDox's Referring Physician Portal to manage referrals transparently and compliantly, complementing their internal compliance programs.

# Developing a Compliance Program: A Step-by-Step Guide

A strong compliance program can help identify and address potential issues before they escalate into legal problems. It provides a framework for dealing with potential violations and fosters an environment where employees feel safe to raise concerns without fear of retaliation.



#### A step-by-step guide to developing a robust compliance program could include:

- **1.** Identifying potential risk areas: For instance, a radiology practice might identify the structuring of compensation arrangements with referring physicians as a potential risk area.
- 2. Developing policies and procedures to address these risks
- **3.** Training staff on these policies and procedures
- **4.** Establishing a system for reporting potential compliance issues
- 5. Regularly auditing and monitoring compliance
- 6. Responding promptly to detected offenses and taking corrective action.

#### **Best Practices for Compliance Programs**

In addition to the steps above, best practices for maintaining and updating a compliance program over time could include regular training refreshers, ongoing risk assessments, and periodic updates to policies and procedures to reflect changes in healthcare laws and regulations.

By understanding the importance of compliance programs and how to develop them effectively, radiology practices can ensure they maintain compliance, manage risks, and foster a culture of integrity.

# Understanding Stark Law versus Anti-Kickback Statute

## Stark Law: A Strict Liability Statute

Stark Law, named after U.S. Congressman Pete Stark, is a federal law that prohibits physicians from referring Medicare patients for certain designated health services to an entity in which the physician (or a member of his or her family) has an ownership/investment interest or with which he or she has a compensation arrangement. This law is a strict liability statute, meaning intent does not matter; if the law is violated, even unintentionally, liability ensues.

#### Anti-Kickback Statute: A Criminal Statute

In contrast, the Anti-Kickback Statute is a criminal statute, and intent does matter. As Adrienne Dresevic explains, "The Anti-Kickback Statute is intent-based<sup>11</sup>, and it is a criminal statute. It basically says that you can't knowingly and willingly solicit, receive, offer or pay anything of value to induce referrals of federal healthcare program business".

#### **Implications for Radiology Practices**

Understanding the differences between these two laws is crucial for navigating the complex regulations that govern healthcare practices. This knowledge can help these practices establish robust compliance programs, implement effective marketing strategies, and avoid common legal pitfalls.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>11</sup> Intent-Based Statute: A law where the intention to commit a crime must be proven along with the guilty act. The Anti-Kickback Statute is an example of an intent-based statute.



- • • •
- • • • •
- . . . . . . .
- • • •

## **Examples of Violations**

To illustrate the differences between these two laws, consider the following examples: A violation of the Stark Law could occur when a physician refers a patient to a diagnostic imaging center with which they have a financial relationship. This violation could occur even if there is no malicious intent, simply due to a technical problem with the arrangement.

## **Best Practices for Compliance**

In order to comply with both Stark Law and the Anti-Kickback Statute, radiology practices should:

- Be aware of the stipulations of both laws.
- Avoid any actions that could be interpreted as violating these laws.
- Regularly review and update their compliance programs to ensure they remain compliant as laws change.
- Foster a culture of compliance within the organization.

By understanding Stark Law and the Anti-Kickback Statute and how they differ, radiology practices can ensure they maintain compliance with these important healthcare laws.

# The Value of Proactive Compliance Audits

## Why Proactive Compliance Audits Are Important

Proactive compliance audits are a valuable tool for healthcare organizations, including radiology practices. They provide a means to identify potential legal issues, ensure ongoing compliance with healthcare laws, and mitigate the risk of legal complications. In conducting these audits, solutions like AbbaDox's Patient Engagement Software with Referral Tracking can provide valuable data, helping practices identify and address potential areas of non-compliance. Adrienne Dresevic emphasizes the importance of having these audits conducted under attorney-client privilege: **"The benefit is, if it's done under attorney-client privilege and there are problems identified, then the fact that those problems were identified is not something that is discoverable by the government"**.

## Conducting a Proactive Compliance Audit: A Step-by-Step Guide

Proactive compliance audits go beyond merely reacting to issues as they arise. They involve a thorough examination of the organization's operations, policies, and procedures to identify areas of potential non-compliance and address them promptly. In this way, they play a crucial role in maintaining the integrity of healthcare practices and fostering a culture of compliance.

ጐ ጐ ቍ ቍ ቍ ቍ ቍ

# 

A proactive compliance audit could involve the following steps:

- Identifying areas of potential risk: For instance, a radiology practice might identify the structuring of compensation arrangements with referring physicians as a potential risk area.
- Reviewing relevant documents and records
- Interviewing staff and management
- Identifying any areas of non-compliance
- Developing a plan to address these issues
- Monitoring the implementation of this plan.

# **Best Practices for Proactive Compliance Audits**

In addition to the steps above, best practices for conducting proactive compliance audits could include regular audit schedules, maintaining a record of all audits and their findings, and ensuring that all staff members are aware of the importance of these audits. Regular training on healthcare laws and regulations, as well as ongoing monitoring of compliance, can also play a crucial role in maintaining the effectiveness of proactive compliance audits.

By understanding the value of proactive compliance audits and how to conduct them effectively, radiology practices can ensure they maintain compliance, manage risks, and foster a culture of integrity.



# Conclusion and Recommendations

## The Importance of Understanding Healthcare Laws

In the complex and ever-changing landscape of healthcare law, understanding and complying with regulations such as Stark Law and the Anti-Kickback Statute is not just a legal necessity—it's a cornerstone of ethical and effective healthcare practices. The insights shared by Adrienne Dresevic in this white paper provide a comprehensive understanding of these laws, their implications, and how to navigate them effectively.

# Key Takeaways

This white paper has delved into the intricacies of Stark Law and the Anti-Kickback Statute, highlighted the often overlooked aspects of healthcare marketing practices, and underscored the importance of robust compliance programs and proactive compliance audits. It has also shed light on common legal pitfalls that radiology practices may encounter and provided practical guidance on how to avoid them.



# ት <del>ት</del> ት ት ት ት ት

# **Future Implications**

As healthcare laws continue to evolve, radiology practices must stay abreast of these changes and adapt their operations accordingly. The shift towards value-based care models, for instance, has already led to new exceptions in Stark Law, and further changes are likely on the horizon.

# Recommendations

Based on the insights shared in this white paper, the following recommendations are proposed:

- Invest time in understanding Stark Law and the Anti-Kickback Statute, their stipulations, their penalties, and their nuances.
- Develop robust compliance programs tailored to the unique characteristics, operations, and risks of your radiology practice.
- Conduct regular proactive compliance audits, ideally under attorney-client privilege.
- Stay aware of potential legal pitfalls and take proactive steps to avoid them.

By understanding these laws and implementing robust compliance measures, radiology practices can ensure legal compliance, maintain the trust of patients, and deliver high-quality healthcare services.



# **Glossary of Terms**

**Stark Law:** A federal law that prohibits physicians from referring Medicare patients for certain designated health services to an entity in which the physician (or a member of his or her family) has an ownership/investment interest or with which he or she has a compensation arrangement.

Anti-Kickback Statute: A federal criminal statute that prohibits the exchange (or offer to exchange), of anything of value, in an effort to induce (or reward) the referral of federal healthcare program business.

**Compliance Program:** A set of internal policies and procedures implemented by a healthcare provider to comply with legal, ethical, and professional standards.

**Proactive Compliance Audit:** A systematic, independent, and documented process for obtaining evidence and evaluating it objectively to determine the extent to which compliance criteria are fulfilled.

Strict Liability Statute: A law where the guilty mind (mens rea) does not have to be proven when a guilty act (actus reus) is committed. Stark Law is an example of a strict liability statute.

**Intent-Based Statute:** A law where the intention to commit a crime must be proven along with the guilty act. The Anti-Kickback Statute is an example of an intent-based statute.

Healthcare Marketing Practices: The systematic planning, implementation, and control of a mix of business activities intended to bring together buyers and sellers for the mutually advantageous exchange or transfer of healthcare services.

**Referral:** The process of directing, or redirecting, of a patient to appropriate healthcare service or professional. The Stark Law has a specific definition of referral, which includes certain exceptions.

**Compensation Arrangement:** Any arrangement involving any remuneration, direct or indirect, overt or covert, in cash or in kind, between a physician (or a member of his or her family) and an entity.

Designated Health Services (DHS): Certain services defined in the Stark Law, including, without limitation, radiology and certain other imaging services.

# About AbbaDox

AbbaDox is a leading provider of cloud-native healthcare IT solutions, designed to streamline workflows and improve patient care. Our suite of innovative products, including the Referral Marketing CRM, Referring Physician Portal, and Patient Engagement Software, help healthcare organizations manage their operations efficiently and compliantly.

For more information, visit www.abbadox.com.

# About The Health Law Partners

The Health Law Partners, P.C., is a law firm dedicated exclusively to healthcare law. Adrienne Dresevic, a founding shareholder of the firm, is a renowned healthcare attorney with extensive experience in Stark Law, the Anti-Kickback Statute, and other healthcare regulations. The firm provides comprehensive legal services to healthcare providers, including radiology practices, helping them navigate the complex landscape of healthcare law.

For more information, visit www.thehealthlawpartners.com.